Central Okanagan FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
Public Schools PUBLIC MEETING
Together We learn AGENDA

The Central Okanagan Board of Education acknowledges that this meeting is being held
on the Traditional Territory of the Okanagan People.

DATE: Wednesday, September 19, 2018
TIME: 4:00 pm
LOCATION: School Board Office

1.

2.
Pg. 3

3.
Pg. 6

4,

5.

6.
Pg. 21

7.
Pg. 62

1040 Hollywood Road S.
Kelowna, BC

AGENDA
Additions/Amendments/Deletions

REPORTS/MATTERS ARISING

2.1 Finance and Audit Committee Public Meeting Report — June 20, 2018
(Attachment)

RECOGNITION/PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS

3.1 Presentation: Report to the Finance and Legal Committee — Communication of
Audit Results and Audited Financial Statements Fiscal Year 2017/2018
(Attachment)

In attendance: Tyler Neels, Grant Thornton
Josh Widmann, Grant Thornton

PUBLIC QUESTION/COMMENT PERIOD
COMMITTEE MEMBERS QUERIES/COMMENTS
DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS

6.1 Audited Financial Statements Fiscal Year 2017/2018
(Attachment)

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

THAT: The Finance and Audit Committee receive the Audited Financial Statements
Fiscal Year 2017/2018, as attached to the agenda and as presented at the September
19, 2018 Finance and Audit Committee Public Meeting;

AND THAT: The Finance and Audit Committee recommends to the Board:

THAT: The Board of Education receive and approve the Audited Financial
Statements Fiscal Year 2017/2018.

INFORMATION ITEMS

7.1 2017/2018 Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis Report
(Attachment)
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8. COMMITTEE CORRESPONDENCE

9. ITEMS REQUIRING SPECIAL MENTION

10. RECOMMENDATIONS/REFERRALS TO
THE BOARD/COORDINATING COMMITTEE/OTHER COMMITTEES

11. ITEMS FOR FUTURE FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS

September

October

November

- Presentation: Audited
Financial Statements for the
Fiscal Year

- Audited Financial Statements
for the Fiscal Year (Action
Item)

- Annual Review of Committee's
Mandate, Purpose and Function

- Financial Update at September
30th

School District No. 23 (Central
Okanagan) Budget
Development Principles
School District No. 23 (Central
Okanagan) Budget
Development Timeline

January

February

April (1% meeting)

- Amended Annual Budget for
the Fiscal Year

- Ministry Recalculation
Allocation — School District
No. 23 and Provincial

- Financial Update at December
315t

- Budget Survey development

- Budget Presentation

Overview of Budget Allocation
Budget Consultation Input
Received

Trustee Indemnity for the
2018/2019 Fiscal Year

April (2" meeting)

May

June

- Central Okanagan School
District Preliminary Budget
Proposal — Superintendent’s
Budget Recommendations

- Financial Report at March 31

- Auditor’s Report to the Finance
and Audit Committee — Initial
Communication on Audit
Planning for the Year

- Annual CommunityLINK
Allocations

- Financial Update — International
Education Program

School District No. 23 (Central
Okanagan) Annual Budget for
the Fiscal Year

12. FUTURE FINANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
October 17, 2018 at 4:00 pm

13. MEDIA QUESTIONS/COMMENTS

14. ADJOURNMENT

November 21, 2018 at 4:00 pm

Finance and Audit Committee Public Agenda
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CENTRAL OKANAGAN PUBLIC SCHOOLS - BOARD COMMITTEE REPORT

COMMITTEE: Finance and Audit Committee Meeting DATE: June 20, 2018

CHAIRPERSON: Trustee J. Fraser STAFF CONTACT:  E. Sadlowski, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO

The Committee Chairperson acknowledged that the meeting was being held
on the Traditional Territory of the Okanagan People.

In attendance: In attendance:
Board of Education: Staff:
Trustee J. Fraser (Chairperson) E. Sadlowski, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO
Trustee R. Cacchioni (Committee Member) D. Carmichael, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer
Trustee L. Tiede (Committee Member) K. Kaardal, Superintendent of Schools/CEO
Trustee M. Baxter T. Beaudry, Deputy Superintendent
Trustee D. Butler V. Dougans, Finance Manager
Trustee L. Mossman L. Parker, Executive Assistant (Recorder)

Partner Group Representation:
COTA Susan Bauhart, President
COPAC  No representative
COPVPA Mike Dornian, Treasurer
CUPE Margaret Varga, Vice-President
DSC Tiana Calao, Member

Agenda/Additions/Amendments/Deletions
Amend: Action Item 6.1 Updated Information — 2018/2019 Annual Budget Bylaw

June 20, 2018 Agenda — approved as amended.
4:01 The COTA President arrived at the meeting.

Reports/Matters Arising

Amend: Amend Attendees - Trustee J. Fraser was absent on Board Business

May 16, 2018 Committee Report — received as amended.

Discussion/Action Items

1. 2018/2019 Annual Budget Bylaw
The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO presented the Annual Budget for Fiscal Year 2018/2019 to the Committee.
The information provided was detailed on the Committee Report from the Finance and Audit Committee
Meeting on April 18, 2018, also detailed on Appendix B on the June 20 Memo to the Committee.

The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO stated there was a larger than normal surplus projected due to teachers costing
less than originally budgeted, the elimination of MSP premiums and underspending in utilities due to energy
saving processes adding additional savings. There were also savings from anticipated admin increases that
were disallowed by Public Sector Employer's Council (PSEC). The actual surplus amount will be confirmed
once the June 30, 2018 yearend is finalized in September, an estimate was provided in Appendix D on the
June 20 Memo to the Committee.

The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO stated that enrolment is the main driver and the budget is dependent on how
many students are enrolled in September 2018. Other discussion and questions were answered by the Office
of the Secretary-Treasurer during discussion time.
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Qutcome:
THAT: The Finance and Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Education:

THAT: The Board of Education give first, second and third readings to the School District
No. 23 (Central Okanagan) Annual Budget Bylaw for the Fiscal Year 2018/2019 in the amount
of $256,065,800.

THAT: The School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) Annual Budget Bylaw for the Fiscal
Year 2018/2019 in the amount of $256,065,800 be read a first, second and third time, passed
and adopted on the 27" day of June 2018.

2. New Policy 161 — Accumulated Operating Surplus
The Assistant Secretary-Treasurer stated that a Policy has been created for the District reflecting current
practices used in the District for accumulated operating surpluses. The surpluses will continue to be targeted
within their current funds and accumulated/carried over year to year. The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO and the
Assistant Secretary-Treasurer reviewed many other School District Policies and implemented similar
wording and elements.

Outcome:
THAT: The Finance and Audit Committee recommends to the Board of Education:

THAT: The Board of Education approve new Policy 161 — Accumulated Operating Surplus as
attached and as presented at the Finance and Audit Committee Meeting, June 20, 2018.

Information ltems

1. K-12 Funding Independent Panel Review
The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO stated that an independent funding review was completed by the Ministry
with all 60 School Districts participating. An update was provided comparing similarities and differences
between the Districts. Most Districts were not in favour of performance-based funding, recruitment and
retention were challenges for all Districts, and Districts felt that Special Education was underfunded.
Districts requested that announcements were made by the Ministry earlier and that formulas provided were
more consistent. School Districts also expressed that surplus funds were necessary to enable them to
purchase unfunded items such as portables.
The Ministry will review the report and decide if/how to adapt the funding formula based on the feedback
provided.

2. Financial Statement Discussion and Analysis (DRAFT)
The Assistant Secretary-Treasurer stated that it is now a Ministry requirement to create a financial health
report that will accompany the audited financial statements each year. Neither a template nor parameters
were provided so the department created a draft version for the Committee’s review and feedback. The
report is a living document that will be updated annually and submitted with the audited financial
statements.
The Secretary-Treasurer/CFO noted that the recommended maximum for unrestricted surplus was 5% of
operating expenses. Our District is sitting at 2.83% which is much lower than other similar Districts in the
Province.

3. Amended Regulations 470R — Transportation Services Management
The Assistant Secretary-Treasurer stated a suggested amendment to the Regulation by removing dollar
figures to allow for mileage changes each year and to prevent the Regulation from requiring an annual
update. The annual maximum transportation assistance rate will be adjusted but removed on the
Regulations.
The Committee discussed the importance of keeping a maximum annual assistance rate noted on the
Regulation and providing clear and concise rules to assist with any challenges that may arise.

Outcome:
Regulations 470R — Transportation Services Management to return for more discussion to a future
Committee meeting in the fall of 2018.

Recommendations/Referrals to the Board/Coordinating Committee/Other Committees
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June 27, 2018 Public Board Meeting:
- 2018/2019 Annual Budget Bylaw — Action Item
- New Policy 161 — Accumulated Operating Surplus — Action Item

Items for Future Finance and Audit Committee Meetings

Public Finance and Audit Meeting:
- Regulations 470R — Transportation Services Management — Discussion Item

September October November
- Presentation: Audited Financial - Finance and Audit Committee — - School District No. 23 (Central
Statements for the Fiscal Year Review of Mandate, Purpose and Okanagan) Budget
- Audited Financial Statements for the Function Development Principles
Fiscal Year (Action Item) - Financial Update at September 30" |- School District No. 23 (Central

Okanagan) Budget
Development Timeline

January February April (1 meeting)
- Amended Annual Budget for the - Budget Presentation - Overview of Budget Allocation
Fiscal Year - Budget Consultation Input
- Ministry Recalculation Allocation — Received
School District No. 23 and - Trustee Indemnity for the
Provincial 2018/2019 Fiscal Year

- Financial Update at December 31%
- Budget Survey development

April (2" meeting) May June
- Central Okanagan School District - Auditor’s Report to the Finance and |- School District No. 23 (Central
Preliminary Budget Proposal — Audit Committee — Initial Okanagan) Annual Budget for
Superintendent’s Budget Communication on Audit Planning the Fiscal Year
Recommendations for the Year - Policy 161 —Accumulated
- Financial Update at March 31% - Annual CommunityLINK Operating Surplus
Allocations

- Financial Update — International
Education Program

- Review of Policy 425 and
Regulations 425R - Student Fees

Meeting Schedule
September 19, 2018 at 4:00 pm  October 17, 2018 at 4:00 pm November 21, 2018 at 4:00 pm

Questions — Please Contact:

Trustee Julia Fraser, Chairperson Phone: 250-681-0269 email: julia.fraser@sd23.bc.ca
Eileen Sadlowski, Secretary-Treasurer/CFO  Phone: 250-470-3224 email: eileen.sadlowski@sd23.bc.ca

Julia Fraser, Chairperson

000005 Finance and Audit Committee Public Meeting
June 20, 2018 Page 3 of 3


mailto:eileen.sadlowski@sd23.bc.ca

C“

woo1B ed@uUuUBWpPIMYSOr I Wo216'e0@S|eaNI9lAL 3

7€89-2T. (062) L €689-¢1. (062) 1

labeuey Jauued

VO ‘VdO ‘uuewpim ysor VO ‘VdO ‘S|eaN J8|AL

—_— 8102 ‘6T Joqwaldas

7 sj|nsal Jipny

99)ILUWOY 1PNy pue 8doueul{ 8y 0] Joday
310Z ‘0 aunr papus JeaA ayj 104

(uebeueyQ |esj3uad) € "ON JoM3sig |o0YdS

“yimoub Joy Jounsul uy

uojuJIoy | Juels) o

000006



8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS
S)Nsal JIpNyY — 88NIWWOD HPNY pue adueul ay) 0} Joday

lana| uoneiuasaidal Juswabeuew yeiq — g Xipuaddy

uyodai sJoyipne juspuadapul yelq — v xipuaddy

s9dlIpuaddy

- N < W

sJanew a|qenodal 18Y10
SJUBWAIRISSIW Paloa.llooun pue sjusunsnipy
s)nsal upny

Arewwins annnoax3

SJUaju09

000007



8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS
S)Nsal JIpNyY — 88NIWWOD HPNY pue adueul ay) 0} Joday

"'8T0Z ‘9T Ae|A U0 NOA 01 8duspuadapul JNo PaWLIUOI M 32UIS aduapuadapul
0) 108dsaJ yum snjels Jno 01 sabueyd ou usaq aAey alay] eyl WUuod spn

aousapuadapu|

'8T0Z ‘9T A\ UO 2an1WIWOD IpNY pue adueuld ay) 01 pajuasald
ueld ay) yum asueplodde ul ABarelis upne Jno paindaxa A|INySsadans aney apn

suoljewlyuod [eba| 0] sasuodsay

S1UaAa Juanbasgns Bulprebal sainpadold e
uoireanp3 Jo preog ayl

pue aanIWwWo) UPNY pue adueul4 ayl Ag SluswWwalels [eldueul) 8yl Jo enolddy e
(saoipuadde ayy ur payoene

ua2a( sey Jelp B) Jana| uonejuasaldal Juswabeuew paubis jo 1digoay o

:8T02 ‘6T Jaqwaidas 1e se Buipuelsino
alam Jey; swall Bumojjoy sy Jo uonnjosal uodn uodal INO azifeuly [IM SN

“uodal SIy} Ul papnjoul aJe Jipne Jey Jo s)Nsal Ay} pue 101sId
8y} JO SjusWalels [eloueuly 8} Jo Jpne Ino pa1s|dwod Ajlenueisqns aey s

JIpNe JINno Jo snieis

uoleonp3 Jo preog ayl Aq Sjuawarels _
[eloueul ay) Jo [enoidde Jaye paigidwo) OVO a1 0) Bunioday — IS0

uodail siyr ulyim S)|nsal Jpne Jo uoediunwwo)d

uoneonp3 Jo pieog ay) Aq sluswiarels
|eloueuly 8yl Jo [eaoldde Jaye pazijeulq

Sluawiarels [eloueul 8T0Z
‘0€ aung ay} uo uodal sJoypne uspuadapu|

Buiuueld

8T0Z ‘9T A Uo pard|dwiod Buipsefial suolreIIUNWWOD puUB SUOISSNISI]

snjels a|qeJanllaq

:so|qeJanlap Buimojjol ayr apinoid 01 pabebua atom apn

‘solued

payoads asayl uey) Jay1o auoAue Aq pasn 1o painguisIp aq 01 papusiul Jou Si

1| ‘Juswaleuew pue ‘uoieINP3 JO pleog Byl ‘8aniWWoD 1pNy pue adueuld ayl
JO 8Sn pue uoneWIOUI 3Y) 10} A|9]0S papualul S| JUBWINJOP SIY) Ul uoiewloul ay |

"slajew Jaylo pue salewnsa aAnsuas ‘saloljod

Bununosoe Juesiubis ‘SUBWBILISSIW UO SJUBWIWOD SapNn|oul pue sainpadoid
1pne Jo s)nsai ay} Buipuelisiapun ul 98aRIWIWOD NPNY pue adueuld ay}

1SISSE ||IM UOITRDIUNWWOI SIY] "8TOZ ‘0S dune papus Jeak ayl oy (,1011siq, ay)
(uebeueyO [enua)) £ 'ON 10M1SIQ [00YDS JO SUSLWIBYL]S [eloueUl 3y} JO IpNe N0
Buipsebais noA yum anbojelp uado ue ul abebua 0] si 1odal sy Jo asodind ay

adoos pue 1odal Jo asodind

Alewwins aAIlnN2axg

000008



8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS

S)INSaJ 1PNy — 93JIWIWIOD JPNY pue ddueul4 ay) 0} Loday

‘uodal 01 sBuipuly
jueoyiubis Aue JaAodun Jou pip sainpadold Jpne JNnQ

'slunode Buljiouodal
pue uoneonp3 Jo AISIUIA 8Y) YIM 3]geAIS3) pue PaAiadal
swelBb Buiwiuod papnjoul pawlopad sainpasold upny

sjuswalels
[eloueUl 3y} 01 JUBdUBIS pue [eualew aJe SSNUBASI JURID

S9NuUaAal JuelD

sBuipuly pue asuodsal inQ laep SNooj JO Baly
‘1odal 01 sBuipuly
juedliubis Aue Janooun jou pip sainpadsoud Jpne JnQ ¢
‘9|qeoidde
aJaym ‘uonrejuswnoop Buoddns o} sjunowe juedyiubis ‘Juswaalbe

Buigalbe pue ajes uo ureb ay) Bune|nojeosal ‘sjuawaalbe
ales ay1 buimainal apnjoul sainpadold lipne InQO

2y} Jo sjuauodwod Arelsuow-uou ay) pue ainyeu xajdwod sy
0] 8NP uodeSUERI] SIY) YIIM pareloosse sysu Jaybiy are aiay L

9921}J0 pJeoq |00YJS JaWIo} ay) Jo a[es ay) uo ures

sBuipul pue asuodsal InQ

e

SN0} JO BalyY

suoloesuel Jueoliubig

"SN20J JO SeaJe JaYlo pue suonoesuel) Jo 19adsal ul sBulpul ueoaniubis 1no 1ybiybiy apn

s)insai Jipny

000009



€

8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS
S)Nsal JIpNyY — 88NIWWOD HPNY pue adueul ay) 0} Joday

‘1odal 01 sBuipuly
jueaiiubis Aue Janooun jou pip sainpadsoud ypne JnQ ¢

‘suonoesues}
uonesuadwod aakojdwa Jo ajdwes e uo s|relap
Jo s1sa1 Bulwiopad pue ‘nun Buurebreq Aq uoiresuadwod

aakojdwsa Jo mainal [eanhfeue ue Bulwiopad ‘ssauanndIaye

Buiresado Joj sjo1u0d A3y Bunsal ‘suonoesuel; jjoiked
pare|al pue s|iia1selN aakojdws Jo adueuSURW PUNOJE
S|0J1u02 Buimainal papn|oul pawiopad sainpasold upny -«

parelsiapun sasuadxa Jo sfeniode uoiresuadwod aakojdwg

uonesuadwod askojdw3g

‘1odal 01 sbBuipuly
jueoyiubis Aue Janodun Jou pip sainpasold Jpne unQ  °

‘'sasuadxa
10 J0-1N2 8y} Uo sainpasoid aanueisgns Buiwlopad pue
‘suonoesuel] JO UOIJD9|3S ke 10} uoireluawnaop Buioddns
01 paplodal sasuadxa Buigaibe ‘saouelen uedyubis
Aue Bunebnsaaul pue AjjeanAreue sasuadxa Buimainal
‘91942 Buiseyaind ay) punose sjosu0d Bunuawnoop

pue Buimainal papnjoul pawlouad sainpadsoid upny ¢

pouad 1981100 3y} Ul P3pI03J 10U 10 pajelsiapun sajgeled

sa|qeAed pue saseyoaind

‘1odal 01 sBuipuly
juedliubis Aue Janooun Jou pip sainpadsoud Jpne JnQ ¢

‘suonoesuel) Juediiubis Buimainal
pue UeIPOISNI JUBWISAAUI Y} YIM SIUBWISBAUI JO aN[eA
Irey ay1 Buiwljuod papnoul pawiopad sainpadsold JIpny

pifeA 10U ale saniAloe
JUSWISAAUI JO 1031109 10U dJe S)USWSINSEaW aNnjeA Jre

SlUaWSaAU|

‘1odal 0} sBuipuly
juedlubis Aue JaA0dUN Jou pIp sainpadold Jpne unQ ¢

‘suonngLiuod [eldes paiaep
10 uoneziiowe pajoadxs Buirenojesal pue ‘sljuswaalbe
Buipuny pue ases| a|qeoidde Buimaiaal ‘uoirelUSWINIOP
Bunioddns 01 Buieaibe ‘sainypuadxa [elded

jueoyubis Bunsal papnjoul pawlopad sainpasoid ypny ¢

Apadoud Joy payunodoe 1ou si Buipuny uelb
paleInoSSE pue ‘pifeA Jou ase SallAiloe s}asse [ended ajqibue

suonnqgluo9 [eldes pallajep
pue sjasse [euded ajqibue

sBulpul) pue asuodsal InQ

Ia1eiN

SN20} JO Baly

000010



¥ 8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS
S)Nsal JIpNyY — 88NIWWOD HPNY pue adueul ay) 0} Joday

"SI3)IeW 2INSO[ISIP JO SUBLWIAIRISSIW [eIALI-UOU palshipeun Aue Ajiuapi 10u pip Ipne InQ

sJa)ew aInsojosIp Jo Alewwng

“1odal 0] sjJuswaleIsSiW PaIsnipeun [eIALI-UOU OU 3ARY S\

S)JUBWa)L)SSIW Pa)IaLIoouN

‘uodal 01 sjuswialeISSIW paisnipe ou aney apn

sjuswisnipy

sjuawaje}ssiw
pajoaliooun pue sjuawisnlpy

000011



S

8T0Z ‘0€ dun( papua Jeak ayy 104 | (uebeueyO [enuad) €2 'ON IOHISIA |00YIS
S)Nsal JIpNyY — 88NIWWOD HPNY pue adueul ay) 0} Joday

"uonoBJSIES INO0 0] PAA|0SA) UdaQ aAey pue Juswabeuew Yum passnosip alam
Jpne Jno Jo }Nsal & Se asoJe Jeyl Sanss| Aue pue uoineuawnIop Iaylo pue
SpJ023l Alessadau |[e 0] Ssadde papinoid alam am ‘@bpajmouy Jno o] lpne
Ino jo asuewuopad ay) Bulnp uoneladood [Ny paAiddal am Jeyl odal app

Jipne ay) Bunnp uonesadoo)

‘saulpeap payoads ay) uiyum paiajdwod st buniodal pasinbai

3y} Teyl ainsua 0} 1aplo ul Juswabeuew 1011sIg 8y} Yyum syuawabuelre
axewW [|IMm am sJeak Joud yum JualsIsuo) “Wwayl 01 Slanew urenad wiyuod
pue ‘sjuawnoop ureuad Jo saidod apinoid ‘sainpadold Jpne urelad wiopad
01 1013SIQ [00Y3S a1 J0 slo)pne ay) se sn asinbal Ayl sluswarels [elroueul
Alewwing s,80UIAO0Id 8U} JO Jipne Jiay) Jo Led Sy 1ouisiq 8y} JO Uolew.oul
[eloueUL BY) 3PN|OUI YdIYm eIqUIN|0D YSiiig JO 3dUIAOI 3U) JO Sjuawalels
leroueulq Alewwng ay} syipne (,HV0,) [eleus9 JOIpNY du} Jo 8OO dYL

sJopew Alojenboy

SJ9o

"'NOA 01 pajesiunwiwod A|snoinald uaaq Apealje 10U aaey Yaiym

Jpne Ino Buunp palou SUORBAISSJO |0J3U0D [eUJSIUI OU 8J9M 33y ‘00D
[eulajul uo aduelInsse apiaoid 01 paubisap 10U S| lipne Juawale)s [eloueul

© ‘JOAOMOH JUBdIUBIS J9PISUOD aM S3I9UBIdIBP SOY) 93NIWWO0D PNy

pue adueul4 8yl 0] 31L2IUNWWO 0] Sh alinbai spiepuels Bunipne ay; ‘Buniodal
[elouBUL JOAO |0JJU0D [RUIBIUI JINOA Ul ADUBIOIBP B JO areme awo09a(g am J|

"|oJ1u09 [eusaII
JO SSaUaAoaYe 8yl uo uoluido ue ssaidxa Jou op am ‘A|BUIPI0IIY "HJOM INO
JO 1UdIXa pue Buiwin ‘ainyeu ay) aulwlialap 0] pue lpne ay) ueld o) Aressadau
JuaIxa ay 01 Bunuodal [eroueUl JSAO [03UOI [RUIB)UI JO Bulpuelsiapun ue urelgo
3/\\ "Sluawalels [eloueuly 8yl uo uoluido ue ssaldxa 0] paubisap silpne ayl

|0JJUOD |BUIB)U|

‘noA
01 parediunwwod Ajsnoinaid uaaq Apealfe 10U aAeY YdIym sieak ainny ui 101sig
ay) 108ye Aew yaiym panssi spepuels bunipne 1o Hununodde mau ou are alayl

gouelINsSse pue BunuNoody

ew 3ajqeliodal 1dylo

000012



Appendix A

Draft Independent auditor’s report
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Grant Thornton

Independent auditor’s report 200-1633 Elis Street
Kelowna, BC
V1Y 2A8

T +1 250 712 6800
F +1 250 712 6850
www.GrantThornton.ca

To the Board of Education of
School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) and the Ministry of Education

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2018 and the statement of operations,
statement of remeasurement gains and losses, statement of changes in net financial assets (debt) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

Management’s responsibility for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of these financial statements in accordance with the
accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the
Province of British Columbia and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s
preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Page 2
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c GrantThornton

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) for the year ended
June 30, 2018 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting requirements of
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia.

Emphasis of matter

Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes
the basis of accounting and the significant differences between such basis of accounting and Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

Other matters

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a
whole. The supplementary information included in Schedules 1 through 4 is presented for purposes of
additional information and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been
subject to the auditing procedures applied, only to the extent necessary to express an opinion in the
audit of the financial statements taken as a whole.

Kelowna, Canada
September 19, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountants

grantthornton.ca

Page 3
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ScHooL DISTRICT NO. 23 (CENTRAL OKANAGAN)

1040 Hollywood Road South
Kelowna BC V1X 4N2

September 19, 2018

Grant Thornton LLP

Chartered Professional Accountants
200 - 1633 Ellis Street

Kelowna BC V1Y 2A8

Dear Sir/Madam:

We are providing this letter in connection with your audit of the financial statements of School District No. 23
(Central Okanagan) (“the District”) as of June 30, 2018 and for the year.then ended, for the purpose of expressing
an opinion as to whether the financial statements are prepared and.the financial position, results of operations,
and cash flows of the District are reported in all material respects, in accordance with accounting requirements of
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia (“Section
23.17).

We acknowledge that we have fulfilled our responsibilities for the preparation of the financial statements in
accordance with Section 23.1 and for the design-and implementation of internal controls to prevent and detect fraud
and error. We have assessed the risk that the financial statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud,
and have determined such risk to be low. Further, we acknowledge that your examination was planned and
conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards (GAAS) so as to enable you to
express an opinion on the financial statements. We understand that while your work includes an examination of the
accounting system, internal controls and related data to the extent you considered necessary in the circumstances,
it is not designed to identify, nor can it necessarily be expected to disclose, fraud, shortages, errors and other
irregularities, should any exist.

Certain representations in this letterare described as being limited to matters that are material. An item is
considered-material, regardless of its monetary value, if it is probable that its omission from or misstatement in the
financial statements would influence the decision of a reasonable person relying on the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of September 19, 2018, the following representations made
to you during your audit.

Financial statements

1 The financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
District as at June 30, 2018 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and are
prepared in accordance with Section 23.1, as agreed to in the terms of the audit engagement.

Completeness of information

2 We have made available to you all financial records and related data and all minutes of the meetings of the
Board of Education and committees of the Board, as agreed in the terms of the audit engagement. Summaries
of actions of recent meetings for which minutes have not yet been prepared have been provided to you. All
significant board and committee actions are included in the summaries.
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We have provided you with unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

There are no material transactions that have not been properly recorded in the accounting records underlying
the financial statements.

There were no restatements made to correct a material misstatement in the prior period financial statements
that affect the comparative information.

We are unaware of any known or probable instances of non-compliance with the requirements of regulatory or
governmental authorities, including their financial reporting requirements.

We are unaware of any violations or possible violations of laws or regulations the effects of which should be
considered for disclosure in the financial statements or as the basis of recording a contingent loss.

We have disclosed to you all known deficiencies in the‘design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting of which we are aware.

We have identified to you all known related. parties and related party transactions, including sales, purchases,
loans, transfers of assets, liabilities and services; leasing arrangement guarantees, non-monetary transactions
and transactions for no consideration.

You provided a non-audit service by assisting us with reviewing the financial statements and related notes. In
connection with this non-audit service, we confirm that we have made all management decisions and
performed all management functions, have the knowledge to evaluate the accuracy and completeness of the
financial statements, and accept responsibility for such financial statements.

Fraud and error

11

12

13

We haveno knowledge of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the District involving management; employees
who_have significant roles in internal control; or others, where the fraud could have a non-trivial effect on the
financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the District’s financial
statements communicated by employees, former employees, analysts, regulators or others.

We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control to
prevent and detect fraud.

Recognition, measurement and disclosure

14

15

We believe that the significant assumptions used by us in making accounting estimates, including those used
in arriving at the fair values of financial instruments as measured and disclosed in the financial statements, are
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances.

We have no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of assets and
liabilities, both financial and non-financial, reflected in the financial statements.
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16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

All related party transactions have been appropriately measured and disclosed in the financial statements. Key
management personnel have not identified related party transactions that may have occurred at a value
different from that which would have been arrived at if the parties were unrelated.

The nature of all material measurement uncertainties has been appropriately disclosed in the financial
statements, including all estimates where it is reasonably possible that the estimate will change in the near
term and the effect of the change could be material to the financial statements.

All outstanding and possible claims, whether or not they have been discussed with legal counsel, have been
disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

All liabilities and contingencies, including those associated with guarantees, whether written or oral, have been
disclosed to you and are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

All “off-balance sheet” financial instruments have been properly recorded or disclosed in the financial
statements.

With respect to environmental matters:

a) atyear end, there were no liabilities'or contingencies that have not already been disclosed to you;

b) liabilities or contingencies have been recognized; measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the
financial statements; and

c) commitments have been measured and disclosed, as appropriate, in the financial statements.

The District has satisfactory title to (or lease interest in) all assets, and there are no liens or encumbrances on
the District’'s assets‘nor have any been pledged as collateral.

We have disclosed to you, and the District has complied with, all aspects of contractual agreements that could
have a material effect on the financial statements in the event of non-compliance, including all covenants,
conditions or other requirements of all outstanding debt.

The Goods and Services Tax (GST) transactions recorded by the District are in accordance with the federal
and provincial regulations. The GST liability/receivable amounts recorded by the District are considered
complete.

Employee future benefit costs, assets, and obligations have been determined, accounted for and disclosed in
accordance with the requirements of Section PS 3255 Post-employment benefits, compensated absences and
termination benefits of the Chartered Professional Accountants (CPA) Public Sector Accounting Handbook.

There have been no events subsequent to the balance sheet date up to the date hereof that would require
recognition or disclosure in the financial statements other than the events disclosed in Note 22. Further, there
have been no events subsequent to the date of the comparative financial statements that would require
adjustment of those financial statements and related notes.
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Other

27 We have considered whether or not events have occurred or conditions exist which may cast significant doubt
on the District’s ability to continue as a going concern and have concluded that no such events or conditions
are evident.

Yours very truly,

Eileen Sadlowski, CFO/Secretary-Treasurer, CPA, CA

Delta Carmichael, Assistant Secretary-Treasurer, CPA, CA

Valerie Dougans, Finance Manager, CPA, CA

Ips
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

MANAGEMENT REPORT
DRAFT

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements.

The accompanying financial statements of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) have been prepared by
management in accordance with the accounting requirements of Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and
Accountability Act of British Columbia, supplemented by Regulations 257/2010 and 198/2011 issued by the
Province of British Columbia Treasury Board, and the integrity and objectivity of these statements are
management's responsibility. Management is also responsible for all of the notes to the financial statements and
schedules, and for ensuring that this information is consistent, where appropriate, with the information contained
in the financial statements.

The preparation of financial statements necessarily involves the use of estumates hased on management's
judgment particularly when transactions affecting the current accounting period cannat be finalized with certainty
until future periods.

Management is also responsible for implementing and maintaining a system‘of internal controls to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded, transactions are properly authorized and reliable financial
information is produced.

The Board of Education of School District No. 23 (Centrabh®©kanagan) (called the "Board") is responsible for
ensuring that management fulfills its responsibilities ¥or finaneial reportingand internal control and exercises
these responsibilities through the Board. The Board reviews ifiternalfinancial statements on a monthly basis and
externally audited financial statements yearly:

The external auditors, Grant Thoraton LLP, conduct an independent examination, in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted auditing staridards, and expressitheir.opinton on the financial statements. The external
auditors have full and free access tofinan€ial management of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) and
meet when required. Thesaeeempanying Independent Auditors' Report outlines their responsibilities, the scope
of their examination and'their opinien on thexSchool District's financial statements.

On behalf of SchoolDistrict No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

ture of the C ersREdA te Signed
uperinteilint Date Signed

Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finalized
September 12, 2018 8:12 Page 1
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Grant Thornton

Independent auditor’s report 2001633 Elis Street
Kelowna, BC
V1Y 2A8

T +1 250 712 6800
F +1 250 712 6850
www.GrantThornton.ca

To the Board of Education of
School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) and the Ministry of Ed

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of 0. 23 (Central Okanagan),
which comprise the statement of financial position as a tatement of operations,
statement of remeasurement gains and losses, stat al assets (debt) and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended unting policies and

accounting requirements of Section ncy and Accountability Act of the
Province of British Columbia and for s anagement determines is necessary to

enable the preparation of financi ' e'from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s respg
y ese financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audi gcordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those

i omply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
ether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

ing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

preparation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Page 2
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o GrantThornton

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements of School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) for the year ended
June 30, 2018 are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the accounting requirements of
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia.

Emphasis of matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 2 to the financial statements, which describes
the basis of accounting and the significant differences between such basis of accounting and Canadian
public sector accounting standards.

Other matters
Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming an opinio
whole. The supplementary information included in Schedul
additional information and is not a required part of the fi
subject to the auditing procedures applied, only to th
audit of the financial statements taken as a whole

inancial statements taken as a
is presented for purposes of
ch information has been
S an opinion in the

nt necessary to e

Kelowna, Canada

September 19, 2018 Chartered Professional Accountants

grantthornton.ca
Page 3
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Statement of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Actual Actual
$ $
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Note 3) 34,086,861 37,751,813
Accounts Receivable
Due from Province - Ministry of Education 3,299,399 1,057,249
Other (Note 4) 1,599,698 1,076,900
Portfolio Investments 12,851,508 11,402,847
Total Financial Assets 51,837,466 51,288,809
Liabilities
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities
Other (Note 5) 13,894,386 14,415,247
Unearned Revenue (Note 7) 2,468,063 2,390,176
Deferred Revenue (Note 8) 3,950,547 3,749,748
Deferred Capital Revenue (Note 9) 186,474,275 180,322,218
Employee Future Benefits (Note 10) 9,584,436 9,436,128
Other Liabilities (Note 11) 0,454,077 9,152,823
Total Liabilities 225,825,784 219,466,340

Net Financial Assets (Debt)

Non-Financial Assets

(173,988,318)

(168,177,531)

Tangible Capital Assets (Note 12) 288,668,213 277,987,954
Prepaid Expenses (Note 13) 161,627 353,171
Supplies Inventory 245,331 196,259
Total Non-Financial Assets 289,075,171 278,537,384
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) 115,086,853 110,359,853
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) is comprised of:
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operation$ 114,335,875 109,171,127
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (LosseS) 750,978 1,188,726
115,086,853 110,359,853
Contractual Obligations (Note 20)
Contingent Liabilities (Note 21)
Approved by the Board
d of Edueation ned
ned
Signature of the Secretary Treasurer Date Signed

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12 The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
00
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education 219,249,702 215,504,211 205,338,458
Other 604,928 695,250 698,577
Tuition 5,600,000 5,886,182 5,168,270
Other Revenue 9,716,281 11,154,669 10,253,268
Rentals and Leases 575,000 613,124 629,784
Investment Income 575,000 950,891 863,335
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (Note 14) 4,398,712 1,400,113
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7,794,000 8,192,707 7,956,135
Total Revenue 2441149 247,395,746 232,307,940
Expenses
Instruction 98,957,506 185,766,959
District Administration 737,562 5,344,439
Operations and Maintenance 33,756,108
Transportation and Housing 3,905,910 3,900,421
Total Expense 228,767,927
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 0,162) 5,164,748 3,540,013
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, beginning of year 109,171,127 105,631,114
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit) from Operations, end of year 114,335,875 109,171,127

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Actual Actual
$ $
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses) at beginning of year 1,188,726 1,601,685
Unrealized Gains (Losses) attributable to:
Portfolio Investments 31,425 138,450
Amounts Reclassified to the Statement of Operations:
Portfolio Investments (469,173) (551,409)
Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) for the year (437,748) (412,959)
Accumulated Remeasurement Gains (Losses) at end of year 750,978 1,188,726

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt)
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Statement 4

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Surplus (Deficit) for the year (5,060,162) 5,164,748 3,540,013
Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets
Acquisition of Tangible Capital Assets (14,435,062) (24,575,113) (13,199,812)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 12,400,000 12,593,566 12,589,228
Net carrying value of Tangible Capital Assets disposed of 1,301,288 299,887
Total Effect of change in Tangible Capital Assets (2,035,062) (10,680,259) (310,697)
Acquisition of Prepaid Expenses (64,747) (332,608)
Use of Prepaid Expenses 256,291 64,068
Acquisition of Supplies Inventory (1,264,882) (1,181,121)
Use of Supplies Inventory 1,215,810 1,221,282
Total Effect of change in Other Non-Financial Assets 142,472 (228,379)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt),
before Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (7,095,224) 3,000,937
Net Remeasurement Gains (Losses) (437,748) (412,959)
(Increase) Decrease in Net Financial Assets (Debt) (5,810,787) 2,587,978
Net Financial Assets (Debt), beginning of year (168,177,531)  (170,765,509)

Net Financial Assets (Debt), end of year

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12

(173,988,318)

(168,177,531)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 2017
Actual Actual
$ $
Operating Transactions
Surplus (Deficit) for the year 5,164,748 3,540,013
Changes in Non-Cash Working Capital
Decrease (Increase)
Accounts Receivable (2,764,948) (432,694)
Supplies Inventories (49,072) 40,161
Prepaid Expenses 191,544 (268,540)
Increase (Decrease)
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities (520,861) 3,408,721
Unearned Revenue 77,887 245,588
Deferred Revenue 200,799 93,922
Employee Future Benefits 148,308 196,879
Other Liabilities 301,254 474,911
Loss (Gain) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets (4,398,712) (1,400,113)
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets 12,593,566 12,589,228
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 8,192,707) (7,956,135)
Recognition of Deferred Capital Revenue Spent on Sites 27,241)
Total Operating Transactions 10,531,941
Capital Transactions
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (19,589,077) (9,772,445)
Tangible Capital Assets -WIP Purchased (4,986,036) (3,427,367)
District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal 5,700,000 1,700,000
Total Capital Transactions (18,875,113) (11,499,812)
Financing Transactions
Capital Revenue Received 14,372,005 7,456,313
Total Financing Transactions 14,372,005 7,456,313
Investing Transactions
Decrease in Remeasurement Gains (Losse (437,748) (412,959)
(Investment in) Proceeds on Disposal o (1,448,661) 707,691
Total Investing Transactions (1,886,409) 294,732
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash (3,664,952) 6,783,174
Cash and Cash Equivale 37,751,813 30,968,639
Cash and Cash Equi 34,086,861 37,751,813
Cash and Cash Equivalent ] of year, is made up of:
Cash 19,317,179 26,366,375
Cash Equivalents 14,769,682 11,385,438
34,086,861 37,751,813

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

Authority and purpose

The School District, established on April 12, 1946, operates under the authority of the School Act of British
Columbia as a corporation under the name of “The Board of Education of School District No. 23 (Central
Okanagan)”, and operates as “School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)”. A Board of Education (the “Board”)
elected for a four-year term governs the School District. The School District provides educational programs
to students enrolled in schools in the District, and is principally funded by the Province of British Columbia
through the Ministry of Education. School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) is exempt from federal and
provincial corporate income taxes.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting

These financial statements have been prepared in accorddance with Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency
and Accountability Act of the Province of British Columbia.This Section requires that the financial statements
be prepared in accordance with Canadian public sector aecounting standards except in regard to the
accounting for government transfers as set out in the "Deferred Revenue and Deferred Capital Revenue" and
"Revenue Recognition" notes below.

In November 2011, Treasury Board provided a directive threugh Restricted Contributions Regulation
198/2011 providing direction for the reporting\of, réstricted contributions whether they are received or
receivable by the School District béfore‘or after this regulation was in effect.

As noted in the "Deferred Revenue anddDeferred Capital Revenue" and "Revenue Recognition” notes below,
Section 23.1 of the Budget Transparency and"Accouftability Act and its related regulations require the School
District to recognize government transfers for the acquisition of capital assets into revenue on the same basis
as the related ameorttizationyexpensenAs these transfers do not contain stipulations that create a liability,
Canadian publigfsector accounting standards would require these grants to be fully recognized into revenue.
The impact of this difference on the financial statements of the School District is as follows:

Year ended June'30)2017 - decrease in annual surplus by S (1,611,712)
June 30, 2017 - increase in‘accumulated surplus & decrease in deferred contributions by $ 179,127,551
Year ended June 30, 2018 - increase in annual surplus by S 4,833,032
June 30, 2018 - increase in accumulated surplus & decrease in deferred contributions by S 183,960,583
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

2.

(b)

(c)

(d)

(f)

(8)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash balances, term deposits and bonds that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. These cash
equivalents generally have a maturity of three months or less when purchased and are held for the purpose
of meeting short term cash commitments rather than for investing.

Portfolio investments

The School District has investments in provincial, municipal and corporate bonds which have original terms to
maturity of greater than three months at the time of acquisition. Bénds notigquoted in an active market are
reported at cost or amortized cost.

Portfolio investments in bond instruments that are quoteddn an active market are recerded at fair value and
the associated transaction costs are expensed upondhitial recogfition. The change in the fair value is
recognized in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses as a remeasurement gain or loss until the
portfolio investments are realized on disposal. Upon dispesal, any accumulated remeasurement gains or
losses associated with the portfolio investmentsjare reclassifiedtothe Statement of Operations.

Impairment is defined as a loss in value of a shott term investment that is other than a temporary decline and
is included in the Statement of Operations. In the casef an item in the fair value category, a reversal of any
net remeasurement gains recognizéd indprevious\reporting periods up to the amount of the write-down is
reported in the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. The loss is not reversed if there is a
subsequent increase in values

Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable’are measured at@mortized cost and shown net of an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses “include licénses, deposits and software maintenance contracts that are valued at
acquisition cost. Prepaidiexpenses are charged to expense over the periods expected to benefit from it.

Supplies inventory

Supplies inventory held for consumption or use include school supplies and are recorded at the lower of
historical cost and replacement cost.

Tangible capital assets

The following criteria apply:

e Tangible capital assets acquired and constructed are recorded at cost and include donated tangible
capital assets which are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation.

e  Work-in-progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable asset class at substantial completion.

e Sites and buildings that no longer contribute to the ability of the School District to provide services are
written-down to residual value.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

2.

(8)

(h)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Tangible capital assets (continued)

e Tangible capital assets acquired or constructed are recorded at cost which includes amounts that are
directly related to the acquisitoin, design, construction, development, improvement or betterment of
the assets. Costs also include overhead directly attributable to construction.

e  Donated tangible capital assets are recorded at their fair market value on the date of donation, except in
circumstances where fair value cannot be reasonably determined, which are then recognized at nominal
value.

e  Work in progress is recorded as an acquisition to the applicable assetfclass at substantial completion.

e  Transfers of capital assets from related parties are recorded at carryingwalue.

e Tangible capital assets are written down to residual value dvhen conditions indicate they no longer
contribute to the ability of the School District to provide sefvices or whenithe value of future economic
benefits associated with the tangible capital assets aredess than their net bookywalue. The write-downs
are accounted for as expenses in the Statement of Operations.

e Buildings that are demolished or destroyed are written,off. DiSposals sites or buildings are recorded and
gains/losses calculated.

e  Amortization is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the tangible capital
asset. It is management's responsibility totdétermine the“appropriate useful lives for capital assets.
These useful lives are reviewed on a regular basis omif, significant events initiate the need to revise.
Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 40 years

Computer hardware 5 years
Computer software 5 years
Furnit@re and equipment 10 years
Vehicles 10 years

Unearned revenué

Unearned revenue includes tuition fees received for courses to be delivered in future periods and receipt of
proceeds for services to be delivered in a future period. Revenue will be recognized in that future period
when the courses or services ape provided.

Deferred revenue and deferred capital revenue

Deferred revenue includes contributions received with stipulations that meet the description of restricted
contributions in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board. When
restrictions are met, deferred revenue is recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in a manner consistent with
the circumstances and evidence used to support the initial recognition of the contributions received as a
liability as detailed in the "Revenue Recognition" note below.

Funding received for the acquisition of depreciable tangible capital assets is recorded as deferred capital
revenue and amortized over the life of the asset acquired as revenue in the Statement of Operations. This
accounting treatment is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian public sector accounting standards
which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue when approved by the transferor and
eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer contains a stipulation that creates a liability in which case
the transfer is recognized as revenue over the period that the liability is extinguished. See the "Basis of
Accounting" note above for the impact of this policy on these financial statements.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

2.

(i)

(1)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee future benefits

The School District provides certain post-employment benefits including vested and non-vested benefits for
certain employees pursuant to certain contracts and union agreements. The School District accrues its
obligations and related costs, including both vested and non-vested benefits, under employee future benefit
plans.  Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement,
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. The benefits cost is actuarially determined
using the projected unit credit method pro-rata on service and managemeéht’s best estimate of expected
salary escalation, termination and retirement rates and mortality. Thé& discount rate used to measure
obligations is based on the cost of borrowing.

The cumulative unrecognized actuarial gains and losses are amortized over the 'expected average remaining
service lifetime (EARSL) of active employees covered under the plan.

The most recent valuation of the obligation was perfosmed at Mar€h»31, 2016 and projected to March 31,
2019. The next valuation will be performed at March 31,2019 fof use at June 30, 2019. For the purposes of
determining the financial position of the plans and the employee future benefit costs, a measurement date of
March 31 was adopted for all periods subsequent;to July 1, 2004,

The School District and its employees make ‘contributionsite, the Teachers’ Pension Plan and Municipal
Pension Plan. The plans are multi-employer plans whefe assets‘and obligations are not separated. The costs
are expensed as incurred.

Asset retirement obligations

Liabilities are recognized for statutory, contractual or legal obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible capital assetS"Wwhen those ebligations result from the acquisition, construction, development or
normal operationfofthe assetsy, The abligations are measured initially at fair value, determined using present
value methodoblogy, and the fesulting“costs capitalized into the carrying amount of the related tangible
capital asset."In subsequent periads, the liability is adjusted for accretion and any changes in the amount or
timing of the undenlying future /cash flows. The capitalized asset retirement cost is amortized on the same
basis as the related‘asset and atcretion expense is included in the Statement of Operations.

Liability for contaminatedssites

Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced into air, soil, water or sediment of a
chemical, organic or radioactive material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard. The
liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for remediation of contaminated sites is
recognized when a site is not in productive use and all the following criteria are met:
e an environmental standard exists;
e contamination exceeds the environmental standard;
e  the School District:

e s directly responsible; or

e accepts responsibility;
e itis expected that future economic benefits will be given up; and
e areasonable estimate of the amount can be made.
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2.

(1)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Liability for contaminated sites (continued)

The liability is recognized as management's estimate of the cost of post-remediation including operation,
maintenance and monitoring that are an integral part of the remediation strategy for a contaminated site.

Revenue recognition

Revenues are recognized in the period in which the transactions or eventsfeccurred that gave rise to the
revenues. All revenues are recorded on an accrual basis, except when the accruals cannot be determined
with a reasonable degree of certainty or when their estimation is impracticable.

Contributions received or where eligibility criteria have been met are recognized as revenue except where
the contribution meets the criteria for deferral as described bélow. Eligibility criteria are the criteria that the
School District has to meet in order to receive the contrib@tions including authorization by the transferring
government.

For contributions subject to a legislative or contractual stipulation or restriction as to their use, revenue is
recognized as follows:

e Non-capital contributions for specific purposes are recorded as deferred revenue and recognized as
revenue in the year related expenses are incurked;

e Contributions restricted for sit€ acquisitions are recorded as revenue when the sites are purchased, and

e  Contributions restricted fortangible\capital assets acquisitions other than sites are recorded as deferred
capital revenue and amgdrtized overthe useful life of the related assets.

Donated tangible capital assetsiother than sites are recorded at fair market value and amortized over the
useful life of the asSets. 'Denated sites are recorded as revenue at fair market value when received or
receivable.

The accounting treatment for restricted contributions is not consistent with the requirements of Canadian
public sector accaunting standards which require that government transfers be recognized as revenue when
approved by the transferor and eligibility criteria have been met unless the transfer contains a stipulation
that meets the criteriafordiability recognition in which case the transfer is recognized as revenue over the
period that the liability is extinguished. See the "Basis of Accounting” note above for the impact of this policy
on these financial statements.

Revenue related to fees or services received in advance of the fee being earned or the service performed is
deferred and recognized when the fee is earned or service performed.

Investment income is reported in the period earned. When required by the funding party or related Act,
investment income earned on deferred revenue is added to the deferred revenue balance.
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2.

(n)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Expenditures
Expenses are reported on an accrual basis. The cost of all goods consumed and services received during the
year is expensed.

e  (Categories of salaries

e  Principals, Vice Principals and Directors of Instruction employed under an administrative officer
contract are categorized as Principals and Vice-Principals.

e  Superintendents, Assistant Superintendents, Secretary Treasur€bs, Trustees and any other
employees excluded from union contract are categorized as Othér Professionals.

e  Allocation of costs

e  QOperating expenses are reported by function, progfam and webject. Whenever possible,
expenditures are determined by actual identificatieh. Additional cests pertaining to specific
instructional programs such as special and aboriginal education are allocated to these programs. All
other costs are allocated to regular programs.

e Actual salaries of personnel assigned by two ot more functions or programs are allocated based on
the time spent in each function and program. Schoeldased clerical salaries are allocated to school
administration and partially to other programs to which,they may be assigned. Principals and Vice-
Principals salaries are allocated to Schedlyadministrationtand may be partially allocated to other
programs to recognize their other responsibilities?

e Employee benefits are allocated to the sam@ programs, and in the same proportions, as the
individual’s salary.

e  Supplies and services are allocated based ‘on\actual program identification.

Financial instruments

A contract establishingga.financial instrument creates, at its inception, rights and obligations to receive or
deliver economicdoenefits:The, financial assets and financial liabilities portray these rights and obligations in
the financial statements. The'School District recognizes a financial instrument when it becomes a party to a
financial instrument contract.

The School District’s financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, portfolio
investments, accounts_payable and accrued liabilities and other liabilities. Unless otherwise noted, it is
management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed to significant credit, liquidity or market risks
arising from these financial instruments. The fair value of these financial instruments approximate their
carrying values, unless otherwise noted.

Except for portfolio investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market that are recorded at fair
value, all financial assets and liabilities are recorded at cost or amortized cost and the associated transaction
costs are added to the carrying value of these investments upon initial recognition. Transaction costs are
incremental costs directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of a financial asset or a financial liability.

Unrealized gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments are recognized in the

Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses. Upon settlement, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified
from the Statement of Remeasurement Gains and Losses and recognized in the Statement of Operations.
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2.

(o)

(p)

(a)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

All financial assets are tested annually for impairment. When financial assets are impaired, impairment losses
are recorded in the Statement of Operations. A write-down of a short term investment to reflect a loss in
value is not reversed for a subsequent increase in value.

For financial instruments measured using amortized cost, the effective interest rate method is used to
determine interest revenue or expense.

Measurement uncertainty

Preparation of financial statements in accordance with the ZBasis of Acceunting” note above requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that impact reported amounts fer assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. Significant
areas requiring the use of management estimates relate to the pétential impairment of assets, rates for
amortization and estimated employee future benefits. Actual resdlts could differ from those estimates.

Funds and reserves

Certain amounts, as approved by the Board, are\set aside ifisaccumulated surplus for future operating and
capital purposes. Transfers to and from funds and resérves areian adjustment to the respective fund when
approved (see the "Internally Restricted Surplus - Opérating Fund" and "Interfund Transfers" notes below).

Cash and cash equivalents

Included in cash andscashpequivalents are funds in the amount of $266,244 (2017 - $126,873), restricted and
paid out to staff who contribute andtake part in the District's self-funded deferred salary leave plan.

Also includediinycash and cash equivalents are funds in the amount of $7,909,361 (2017 - $7,241,200),
restricted and paidhout to teachers who contribute and take part in the District's self-funded summer saving
plan.

Accounts receivable - other

2018 2017
GST rebate S 301,727 S 244,447
Invoices receivable 326,570 328,821
Long term receivable 71,908 86,302
Other receivable 899,493 417,330
Total accounts receivable - other S 1,599,698 S 1,076,900
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
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June 30, 2018

5. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities - other

2018 2017
Trade S 3,701,154 S 2,196,570
International Education 1,406,212 1,137,576
Summer Savings program 7,909,361 7,241,200
Deferred Salary Leave program 266,244 126,873
Due to administration building contractor - 2,482,016
Ministry of Education enrolment audit recovery - 374,434
Miscellaneous 611,415 856,578
Total accounts payable and accrued liabilities - other S 13,894,386 S 14,415,247

6. Bankloans

The School District has a revolving demand operating gredit facilityfwith the Royal Bank of Canada in the
amount of $5,000,000. The facility is secured by a certified cdpy of a resolution permitting short term
borrowings up to $5,000,000 under Section 139 of the Schoal Act'approved by the Board of Education of the
School District. The amounts are repayable on demand and bear interest at the bank’s prime lending rate. At
June 30, 2018 the balance outstanding under this eredit,facility was Shil (2017 — Snil).

7. Unearned revenue

2018 2017

Balance, beginning of year S 2,390,176 S 2,144,588
Changes for the year;
Increase:

Transportation fées 57,290 140,551

Tuition fees 4,527,283 4,277,085

Other 14,833 11,898

4,599,406 4,429,534

Decrease:

Transportation fees (140,551) (287,709)

Tuition fees (4,369,070) (3,881,216)

Other (11,898) (15,021)

(4,521,519) (4,183,946)
Balance, end of year S 2,468,063 S 2,390,176
2018 2017

Unearned revenue comprised of:

Transportation fees S 57,290 S 140,550

Tuition fees 2,395,940 2,237,728

Other 14,833 11,898

S 2,468,063 $ 2,390,176
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
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8. Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue includes unspent grants and contributions received that meet the description of a
restricted contribution in the Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by Treasury Board, i.e., the
stipulations associated with those grants and contributions have not yet been fulfilled. Detailed information
about the changes in deferred revenue is included in Schedule 3A.
2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year S 3,749,748 S 3,655,826
Contributions received during the year 24,881,699 16,311,778
Revenue recognized from deferred contributions (24,680,900) (16,217,856)
200,799 93,922
Balance, end of year S 3,950,547, S 3,749,748
9. Deferred capital revenue
Deferred capital revenue includes grants and ‘contributions receivedithat are restricted by the contributor for
the acquisition of tangible capital assets that meet“theldescription of a restricted contribution in the
Restricted Contributions Regulation 198/2011 issued by TreasurypBoard. Once spent, the contributions are
amortized into revenue over the lifepof the assetdacquired. Detailed information about the changes in
deferred capital revenue is included'in Schedule 4C'and 4D.
2018 2017
Balance, beginning of year S 180,322,218 S 180,822,040
Contributions recéivedduring,the year 14,337,644 7,456,222
Investment ingbme 34,361 91
Revenue redoghized from defefred contributions (8,192,707) (7,956,135)
Site purchases (27,241) -
Balance, end of year S 186,474,275 S 180,322,218
10. Employee future benefits

Benefits include vested sick leave, accumulating non-vested sick leave, early retirement,
retirement/severance, vacation, overtime and death benefits. Funding is provided when the benefits are paid
and accordingly, there are no plan assets. Although no plan assets are uniquely identified, the School District
has provided for the payment of these benefits.
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10. Employee future benefits (continued)

Reconciliation of accrued benefit obligation
Accrued benefit obligation - April 1
Service cost
Interest cost
Benefit payments
April 1 to March 31 - vested
April 1 to March 31 - non vested
Actuarial (gain) loss
Accrued benefit obligation - March 31

Reconciliation of funded status at end of fiscal year
Accrued benefit obligation - March 31

Employer contributions after measurement date

Benefit expense after measurement date - April to June 30
Unamortized net actuarial (gain)/loss

Accrued benefit obligation - June 30

Reconciliation of change in accrued benefit liability.
Accrued benefit liability - July 1
Net expense for fiscal year
Employer contributions
July 1 to March 31
April 1 to June 30
Accrued benefit liability - June 30

Components of net benefit.expense
Service cost - Julyd to March 32
Service cost - April'1 to June 30

Interest cost -July. 1 to March 31
Interest cost - Aptil 4,to June 30
Amortization of net'actuarial (gain)/loss
Net benefit expense

2018 2017
8,653,674 9,007,221
708,445 709,320
244,205 228,617
(850,906) (378,031)
(60,537) (71,836)
(49,464) (841,617)
8,645,417 8,653,674
(8,645,417) (8,653,674)
235,269 408,772
(243,730) (238,163)
(930,558) (953,063)
(9,584,436) (9,436,128)
9,436,128 9,239,249
886,248 956,411
(502,671) (350,760)
(235,269) (408,772)
9,584,436 $ 9,436,128
531,334 531,990
182,294 177,112
183,154 171,462
61,435 61,051
(71,969) 14,796
886,248 $ 956,411

The significant actuarial assumptions adopted for measuring the School District’s accrued benefit obligations

are:

Discount rate - April 1

Discount rate - March 31

Long term salary growth - April 1

Long term salary growth - March 31

Expected avg. remaining service lifetime (EARSL) - March 31

000040

2018 2017
2.75% 2.50%
2.75% 2.75%

2.50% + seniority
2.50% + seniority
9.7

2.50% + seniority
2.50% + seniority
9.7
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11. Other liabilities

2018 2017
Accrued vacation payable S 1,302,705 S 1,233,945
Benefits payable 6,976,235 6,818,662
Wages payable 694,713 681,496
Other payables 480,424 418,720
Total other liabilities S 9,454,077 $ 9,152,823
12. Tangible capital assets
2018 2017
Net Book Value
Sites S 53,782,634 S 54,631,250
Buildings 210,494,440 203,063,564
Buildings - WIP 4,986,036 3,427,367
Computer hardware 9,132,134 7,212,534
Computer software 22,031 26,170
Furniture & equipment 5,837,869 5,080,032
Vehicles 4,413,069 4,547,037
Total S 288,668,213 S 277,987,954
Balance at Net WIP Balance at
July 1, 2017 Additions Disposals Transfer June 30, 2018
Cost
Sites S 54,631,250, S 82,963 S (931,579) S - $ 53,782,634
Buildings 362,718,161 12,528,032 (660,385) 3,427,367 378,013,175
Buildings - WIP 3,427,367 4,986,036 - (3,427,367) 4,986,036
Computer hardware 13,099,980 4,539,596 (3,306,359) - 14,333,217
Computer software 46,718 5,206 (19,083) - 32,841
Furniture & equipment 10,458,463 1,803,684 (1,434,024) - 10,828,123
Vehicles 7,635,653 629,596 (1,016,012) - 7,249,237
Total S 452,017,592 $ 24,575,113 S (7,367,442) S - $469,225,263
Acc. Amortization
Buildings S 159,654,597 S 8,154,814 S (290,676) S - $167,518,735
Computer hardware 5,887,446 2,619,996 (3,306,359) - 5,201,083
Computer software 20,549 9,344 (19,083) - 10,810
Furniture & equipment 5,378,431 1,045,847 (1,434,024) - 4,990,254
Vehicles 3,088,615 763,565 (1,016,012) - 2,836,168
Total S 174,029,638 $ 12,593,566 S (6,066,154) S - $180,557,050
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June 30, 2018

12. Tangible capital assets (continued)

Balance at Balance at

Julv 1, 2016 Additions Disposals June 30, 2017
Cost
Sites S 54,787,848 S 143,289 S (299,887) S 54,631,250
Buildings 357,088,249 5,629,912 - 362,718,161
Buildings - WIP - 3,427,367 - 3,427,367
Computer hardware 14,153,101 1,842,204 (2,895,325) 13,099,980
Computer software 92,633 14,429 (60,344) 46,718
Furniture & equipment 10,733,039 690,310 (964,886) 10,458,463
Vehicles 6,223,568 1,4524301 (40,216) 7,635,653
Total S 443,078,438 $ 13,199,812 'S (4,260,658) $ 452,017,592
Acc. Amortization
Buildings S 151,610,1774 S 8,0444420 S - $§ 159,654,597
Computer hardware 5,952,15% 2,830,620 (2,895,325) 5,887,446
Computer software 62,365 18,527 (60,344) 20,548
Furniture & equipment 5,270,013 1,073,304 (964,886) 5,378,431
Vehicles 2,506,475 622,357 (40,216) 3,088,616
Total S 165,401,181 9S,.12,589,228 S (3,960,771) $ 174,029,638

Buildings - WIP having a value of $4;,986,036 (2017.453,427,267) has not been amortized. Amortization of
these assets will commence whenfthe assets are putin service.

During the year, the District substantially ecompleted building the new school board office which was funded
by the sale of the existing board offieé, Annual Facilities funding, local capital and future land sales.

13.

Prepaid expensSes

Prepaid software licensing, deposits and classroom equipment  $

000042

2018 2017
161,627 $ 353,171
Page 20



School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

14.

Disposal of site

During the year, the School District disposed of one piece of property located on Underhill Street in Kelowna,
BC. This property was owned by the independent Kelowna School District and transferred to the District upon
incorporation in 1946. As such, the purchase was fully funded by the District and the corresponding gain on
disposal has been recorded in local capital. Details of the recording of the disposition is as follows:

Proceeds S 5,700,000
Net book value (1,301,288)
Gain on sale of property S 4,398,712

15.

Employee pension plans

The School District and its employees contribute to the Teachers’ Pension Plan andhiMunicipal Pension Plan,
jointly trusteed pension plans. The boards of trustees for these plans represent plan members and
employers, and are responsible for the management of the pensiofi plan including investment of the assets
and administration of benefits. The pension plans are multi*employer defined benefit pension plans. Basic
pension benefits provided are based on a formula. As at December 31, 2016, the Teachers’ Pension Plan has
about 45,000 active members from school districts,and approximately 37,000 retired members from school
districts. As at December 31, 2016, the Municipal“Plahghas about 293,000 active contributors, of which
approximately 24,000 are from school districts.

Every three years, an actuarial valuationis performed to assess the financial position of the plans and the
adequacy of plan funding. Jhe actuary determinés an appropirate combined employer and member
contribution rate to fund the plans. The actuary's ‘calculated contribution rate is based on the entry age
normal cost method, which produces the'long termirate ofmember and emplooyer contributions sufficeint to
provide benefits for average future‘entrants to the plans. This rate may be adjusted for the amortization of
any actuarial funding surplus and“will be adjusted for the amortization of any unfunded actuarial liability.
The most recentfvaluation of the Teachers’ Pension Plan as at December 31, 2014 indicated a $449 million
surplus for basic pension benefits, on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2014 basic account actuarial
valuation surplus, and sursuant to the joint trustee agreement, the employer basic contribution rate
decreased. The next,valuation for the Teachers' Pension Plan will be as at December 31, 2017, with results
available in 2018.

The most recent valuation'for the Municipal Pension Plan as at December 31, 2015 indicated a $2,224 million
funding surplus for basic pension benefits on a going concern basis. As a result of the 2015 basic account
actuarial valuation surplus and pursuant to the joint trustee agreement, $1,927 million ws transferred to the
rate stabilization account and $297 million of the surplus ensured the reugired contribution rate remained
unchanged. The next valuation will be as at December 31, 2018 with results available in 2019.

Employers participating in the plan record their pension expense as the amount of employer contributions
made during the year (defined contribution pension plan accounting). This is because the plan records
accrued liabilities and accrued assets for the plan in aggregate with the result that there is no consistent and
reliable basis for allocating the obligation, assets and cost to individual employers participating in the plan.
The School District paid $19,220,290 (2017 - $17,788,215) for employer contributions to these plans in the
year ended June 30, 2018.
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16. Internally restricted surplus - operating fund
2018 2017

Internally restricted (appropriated) by Board for:
Appropriated for next year's budget 3,034,268 2,610,224
Net school surpluses 963,383 1,471,330
Student learning grant - 745,060
Targeted aboriginal program 402,302 252,237
CUPE training funds 164,119 177,563
Comprehensive privacy and security foundation 100,000 -
Energy manager shared service program 82,205 161,269
Trades grant 27,075 142,532
WCB core audit funds 39,000 54,000
Trustee travel 33,928 30,200
Active kids grant - 20,699
International field trip 23,400 -
Subtotal (internally restricted) 4,869,680 5,665,114
Unrestricted operating surplus 2,519,656 2,233,445
Total available for future operations 7,389,336 7,898,559

17. Expense by object

2018 2017

Salaries and benefits 197,519,799 185,583,184
Services and supplies 32,117,633 30,595,517
Amortization on tangible capitalassets 12,593,566 12,589,226
Total expenses by‘object 242,230,998 228,767,927

18. Interfund transfers

Inter-fund transfers bhetweenfoperating, special purpose and capital funds are for the year ended June 30,
2018 were as follows:

e Transfers in the amount of $567,351 (2017 - $663,684) were made from the Special Purpose Funds to
the Capital Fund for capital asset purchases funded by the Special Purpose Funds.

e Transfers in the amount of $1,050,069 (2017 - $1,166,901) were made from the Operating Fund to the
Capital Fund for capital asset purchases funded by the Operating Fund.

e Transfers in the amount of $4,000,000 (2017 - $2,627,415) were made from Local Capital within the
Operating fund to the Capital Fund for capital asset purchases funded by Local Capital.
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19.

Related party transactions

The School District is related through common ownership to all Province of British Columbia ministries,
agencies, school districts, health authorities, colleges, universities, and crown corporations.

Transactions with all of these entities, unless disclosed separately, are generally considered to be in the
normal course of operations and are recorded at the exchange amount.

20.

Contractual obligations

During the year, the School District has entered into several contractual@bligations including:

e  Construction contracts, relating to new middle schools in bothéthe upper Mission and Lake Country, as
well, bus and Annual Facilities purchases, resulting in commitments ofiS$61,687,838 at June 30, 2018
(2017 - $45,033,744).

e  These commitments will be funded by bylaw capitaldghrough the Province of British Columbia and will
become liabilities in the future when the terms of the contracts@are met.

21.

Contingencies

The School District is involved in certain legal actions. Some o6fithese‘legal actions are managed and covered
by the School District, School’s Protection Program. Thé outcome of these matters cannot be determined at
this time. In the event that any claims argsuccessful,fit'is management’s opinion that the settlements of such
claims would not have a material effect ‘'on\the finangial position of the School District. The resulting loss to
the School District, if any, willbe recorded in the periodiin which it is determinable.

Legal liabilities may exist for{thedremoval or disposal of asbestos in schools that will undergo major
renovations or demalitions, As atJune 30, 2018, the liability is not reasonably determinable and accordingly,
the fair value ofhe liability for asbestes removal or disposal will be recognized in the period in which it is
incurred.

The School Districthhas three letters of credit with the Royal Bank of Canada in the amounts of $17,550 and
$428,172, both payable to the' City of Kelowna, and $35,000, payable to the Rutland Waterworks District.
The City of Kelowna lettex of credits are required in connection with the completion of works and service as
well as landscaping relating’to the new administation office located at 1040 Hollywood Road. These letter of
credits were issued on July 29, 2016 and December 6, 2017 respectively. The $17,550 letter of credit was
reduced to $1,000 on June 11, 2018. The Rutland Waterworks District letter of credit was necessary to cover
hydrant installation and geoexchange improvements for the new administration office as well and was issued
on April 5, 2017.

22.

Subsequent event

Subsequent to June 30, 2018, the School District disposed of property located on Berry Road in the District of
Lake Country fof $1,875,000. The land and building was funded by both the District and Ministry of Education
so the corresponding gain on disposal will be recorded in both Ministry of Education restricted capital (75%)
and local capital (25%).
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23. Risk management

The School District has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: credit risk,
market risk and liquidity risk. The Board ensures that the School District has identified its risks and ensures
that management monitors and controls them.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to an institution if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations. Such risks arise principally from certain financial assets held
consisting of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and portfolio invéstments.

The School District is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-pesformance by a borrower. This risk is
mitigated as most accounts receivable are due from the Province and are callectible.

It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exp@sed to significant eredit risk associated with its
cash deposits and investments as they are placed with the Royal Bank of Canada and the School District
invests solely in fixed income and money market secufities. All bonds must have a 'BBB' or better credit
rating.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future‘cashaflows of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices. Market risk is comprised of curréney risk'and interest rate risk.

Currency risk is the risk that the faigalueyor future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in the foreign exchange rates. It is management’s opinion that the School District is not exposed
to significant currency risk, asfamounts held and purchases made in foreign currency are insignificant.

Interest rate risk is the risk that thé fair value orfuture cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes_ insthemmarketiinterest rates. The School District is exposed to interest rate risk through its
cash and cash eguivalents‘andyportfalio,investments. It is management’s opinion that the School District is
not exposed t@ significant interest rate risk’as they invest solely in fixed income and money market securities.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the School District will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they
become due.

The School District manages liquidity risk by continually monitoring actual and forecasted cash flows from
operations and anticipated investing activities to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring
unacceptable losses or risking damage to the School District’s reputation. It is management’s opinion that
the School District is not exposed to significant liquidity risk, as cash flows are guaranteed by the Ministry of
Education.

Risk Management and insurance services for all School Districts in British Columbia are provided by the Risk
Management Branch of the Ministry of Finance.
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)
Notes to the Financial Statements
June 30, 2018

24. Economic dependence

The operations of the School District are dependent on continued funding from the Ministry of Education and
various governmental agencies to carry out its programs. These financial statements have been prepared on
a going concern basis.

25. Comparative figures

Certain of the prior year’s figures have been reclassified to conform with the gurrent year’s presentation.

26. Budget figures

Budget figures included in the financial statements are the ariginal planned budget approved by the Board
through the adoption of an annual budget on June 28, 2017. While PSAS require the presentation of the
originally planned budget, an amended budget based on more accurfate enrollment numbers was approved
by the Board and filed with the Ministry of Education on‘Februaryfl4, 2018. Significant changes between the
original and amended budget are as follows:

Amended

Annual Annual

Budget Budget Change
Revenue
Provincial Grants 215,583,258 $ 219,854,630 S 4,271,372
Tuition 5,600,000 5,600,000 -
Other Revenue 10,484,131 10,291,281 (192,850)
Investment Income 675,000 575,000 (100,000)
Amortization of Deferred Cap,Revenue 7,794,000 7,794,000 -
Total Revenue 240,136,389 S 244,114911 S 3,978,522
Expense
Instruction 199,908,824 S 204,267,913 S 4,359,089
District Administration 6,019,335 5,950,004 (69,331)
Operations and Maintenance 35,483,725 35,051,246 (432,479)
Transportation and Housing 3,941,432 3,905,910 (35,522)
Total Expense 245,353,316 S 249,175,073 S 3,821,757
Net Revenue (Expense) (5,216,927) S (5,060,162) $ 156,765
Budget Allocation of Surplus (Deficit) 5,665,114 5,214,224 (450,890)
Budget Surplus (Deficit), for the year 448,187 S 154,062 S (294,125)
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Schedule of Operating Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule 2 (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 201,610,204 198,814,251 196,335,998
Other 604,928 695,250 698,577

Tuition 5,600,000 5,886,182 5,168,270

Other Revenue 2,416,281 3,049,887 3,011,687

Rentals and Leases 575,000 613,124 629,784

Investment Income 550,000 859,731 771,678

Total Revenue 211,356,413 209,918,425 206,615,994
Expenses

Instruction 180,465, 174,843,957 170,219,569

District Administration 5,737,562 5,344,439

Operations and Maintenance 20,617,258 21,022,149

Transportation and Housing 4,178,802 3,900,421

Total Expense 972,777 5,377,579 200,486,578
Operating Surplus (Deficit) for the year (1,616,364) 6,129,416
Budgeted Appropriation (Retirement) of Surplus (Deficit)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (1,019,447) (1,050,069) (1,166,901)

Local Capital (4,000,000) (2,627,415)

Total Net Transfers (5,050,069) (3,794,316)
Total Operating Surplus (Deficit), for the year (509,223) 2,335,100
Operating Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year 7,898,559 5,563,459
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year 7,389,336 7,898,559
Operating Surplus (Deficit), end of year

Internally Restricted (Note 16) 4,869,680 5,665,114

Unrestricted 2,519,656 2,233,445

Total Operating Surplus 7,389,336 7,898,559
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Schedule of Operating Revenue by Source
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule 2A (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education
Operating Grant, Ministry of Education 199,560,179 196,542,196 192,838,092
DISC/LEA Recovery (891,281) (1,034,101) (1,057,995)
Other Ministry of Education Grants
Pay Equity 1,238,323 1,238,323 1,238,323
Funding for Graduated Adults 15,000 18,549
Transportation Supplement 600,000 600,000 600,000
Economic Stability Dividend 134,530 118,642
Return of Administrative Savings 967,983 967,983 967,983
Carbon Tax Grant 120,000 164,666 262,217
Student Learning Grant 1,114,394
Audit Recoveries (124,533)
Shared Energy Manager Funding 200,000 200,000
Cohesive Data Funding 70,000
FSA & Exam 27,292 27,293
Other 27,895 8,500
Total Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education 201,610,204 14,251 196,335,998
Provincial Grants - Other 04,928 698,577
Federal Grants - - -
Tuition
International and Out of Province Students 5,600,000 5,886,182 5,168,270
Total Tuition 00,000 5,886,182 5,168,270
Other Revenues
Other School District/Education Authorities 525,000 715,022 668,248
LEA/Direct Funding from First Nations 891,281 1,034,101 1,057,995
Miscellaneous
Transportation fees 400,000 486,964 473,201
Wage Recoveries 360,000 339,943 316,818
City of Kelowna 40,000 40,000 40,000
District of Lake Country 70,000 71,981 71,981
Other 130,000 361,876 383,444
Total Other Revenue 2,416,281 3,049,887 3,011,687
Rentals and Leases 575,000 613,124 629,784
Investment Income 550,000 859,731 771,678
Total Operating Revenue 211,356,413 209,918,425 206,615,994
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Schedule of Operating Expense by Object
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Salaries
Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes
Total Salaries

Employee Benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits

Services and Supplies
Services
Student Transportation
Professional Development and Travel
Rentals and Leases
Dues and Fees
Insurance
Interest
Supplies
Utilities
Total Services and Supplies

Total Operating Expense

Schedule 2B (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $

97,438,257 92,711,135 90,899,615
10,889,462 10,950,478 10,549,981
13,883,717 14,107,613 13,105,811
20,299,570 19,073,882 18,782,589
3,014,779 2,984,128 2,647,034
6,465,851 6,664,739 6,953,750
151,991,636 146,491,975 142,938,780
37,585,048 36,509,487 35,874,540
189,576, 183,001,462 178,813,320
7,9 5,323,378 5,256,577
347,949 354,938 365,740
1,902,548 1,746,867
302,500 214,167
55,500 374,581
,000 590,220 628,737
11,245,278 9,993,256 9,478,503
3,851,340 3,643,373 3,608,086
3,396,093 22,376,117 21,673,258
2,177 205,377,579 200,486,578
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Schedule of Special Purpose Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Schedule 3 (Unaudited)

2018 2018 2017
Budget Actual Actual
$ $ $
Revenues
Provincial Grants
Ministry of Education 17,639,498 16,662,719 9,002,460
Other Revenue 7,300,000 8,017,283 7,208,174
Investment Income 898 440
Total Revenue 24,939,498 24,680,900 16,211,074
EXxpenses
Instruction 23,802,296 24,113,549 15,547,390
Total Expense 23,802,296 24,113,549 15,547,390
Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year 567,351 663,684
Net Transfers (to) from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased (567,351) (663,684)
Total Net Transfers (567,351) (663,684)

Total Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit) for the year
Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), beginning of year

Special Purpose Surplus (Deficit), end of year
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Schedule of Capital Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2018

2018 Actual
2018 Invested in Tangible Local Fund 2017
Budget Capital Assets Capital Balance Actual
$ $ $ $ $

Revenues

Provincial Grants

Ministry of Education 27,241 27,241

Other Revenue 87,499 87,499 33,407

Investment Income 25,000 90,262 90,262 91,217

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Tangible Capital Assets 4,398,712 4,398,712 1,400,113

Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7,794,000 8,192,707 8,192,707 7,956,135

Total Revenue 7,819,000 12,618,660 177,761 12,796,421 9,480,872
Expenses

Operations and Maintenance 146,304 144,731

Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets

Operations and Maintenance 12,400,000 12,593,566 12,593,566 12,589,228

Total Expense 12,400,000 12,739,870 12,733,959
Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year (4,581,000) 56,551 (3,253,087)
Net Transfers (to) from other funds

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased 2,156,649 ,617,420 1,830,585

Local Capital 2,578,413 4,000,000 4,000,000 2,627,415

Total Net Transfers 4,735,062 4,000,000 5,617,420 4,458,000
Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

District Portion of Proceeds on Disposal 5,700,000 -

Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital (9,904,713) -

Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital - -

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances (4,204,713) -
Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year 5,847,227 (173,256) 5,673,971 1,204,913
Capital Surplus (Deficit), beginning of yea 98,659,035 2,613,533 101,272,568 100,067,655
Capital Surplus (Deficit), end of year 104,506,262 2,440,277 106,946,539 101,272,568

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Tangible Capital Assets - Work in Progress
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Furniture and  Computer Computer
Buildings Equipment Software Hardware Total
$ $ $ $ $
Work in Progress, beginning of year 3,427,367 3,427,367
Changes for the Year
Increase:
Deferred Capital Revenue - Bylaw 4,986,036 4,986,036
4,986,036 - - 4,986,036
Decrease:
Transferred to Tangible Capital Assets 3,427,367 3,427,367
3,427,367 - - 3,427,367
Net Changes for the Year 1,558,669 - 1,558,669
Work in Progress, end of year 4,986,036 - 4,986,036

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12
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School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan)

Deferred Capital Revenue
Year Ended June 30, 2018

Bylaw Other Other Total
Capital Provincial Capital Capital
$ $ $ $
Deferred Capital Revenue, beginning of year 174,180,870 4,564,281 382,400 179,127,551
Changes for the Year
Increase:
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Capital Additions 7,907,842 111,754 20,107 8,039,703
7,907,842 111,754 20,107 8,039,703
Decrease:
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue 7,931,408 145,798 115,501 8,192,707
7,931,408 145,798 115,501 8,192,707
Net Changes for the Year (23,566) 44) (95,394) (153,004)
Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 174,157,304 37 287,006 178,974,547
Work in Progress, beginning of year -
Changes for the Year
Increase
Transferred from Deferred Revenue - Work in Progress 4,986,036
- - 4,986,036
Net Changes for the Year - - 4,986,036
Work in Progress, end of year - - 4,986,036
Total Deferred Capital Revenue, end of year 4,530,237 287,006 183,960,583

DRAFT - Not Finalized

September 12, 2018 8:12
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Introduction

This report is a financial statement discussion and analysis of the financial performance of Central
Okanagan Public Schools (aka School District No. 23 (Central Okanagan) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2018. It is based on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. This should be read in
conjunction with the District's financial statements. The preparation of this financial statement
discussion and analysis is management's responsibility.

The District:

e lives on Okanagan Territory;

e serves 180,000 citizens living in 4 municipalities - P
Country, and the Regional District of Central Okan

e isthe 5th largest district in BC with approximately 22,000 students;

e has 43 schools - 31 elementary, 6 middle, 5 secondary, and 1 alternative school (operating on 4
campuses);

e has 7 Board of Education Trustees;

e has anincreasing number of immigrant families residing in,the Central Qkanagan;

e welcomes more English Language Learners (ELL)and.nternational students, and proud that
more Aboriginal families are s tifying;

nd, West Kelowna, Kelowna, Lake

Our Overarching Goal
Each Central Okanagan Public Schools student (K-12) will.provide
innovator, collaborator and contributor.

nce of being a learner, thinker,

Mission Statement
To educate students in

knowledge anH”Is to be

Vision Statement
Central"Okanagan Public Schools is @ progressive leader in education, which sets the standard for
educational excellence and ensures that each student has opportunities to succeed.

, inspirational learning.environment where each student develops the
ong learner.and a healthy productive member of our global society.

Cultural Values
o Honesty is uilding b for relationships and the basis for trust. It is the absence of
falsehood and action of full disclosure. It is the ultimate test of moral strength. When
honesty is present, integrity will also be apparent.

o Responsibility is being accountable for our actions and their consequences. When we
demonstrate responsibility, we are doing our best to meet the expectations of ourselves and
others.

o Respect is "to consider worthy of high regard". Being respectful is an attitude of honouring
people and caring about their rights.

o Empathy is a feeling of concern, compassion and understanding of another's situation or
feelings.

o While recognizing individual situations and differences, Fairness is ensuring impartiality
where everyone plays by the same rules.

3|Page
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Financial Statement Composition Overview

The two key audited statements are:

Statement of Financial Position - summarizes the combined assets and liabilities at June 30t".
This provides an indication of the financial health of the District;
Statement of Operations - summarizes the combined revenues received and expenses incurred
during the twelve months between July 1 and June 30. This provides an indication of the
funding received by the District and how that funding was spent;

A Statement of Changes in Net Financial Assets (Debt), Statem Cash Flows and the notes to the
financial statements are also audited, and provide further a of the District's finances.

The schedules at the end of the notes to the financial statements are in a format prescribed by the
Ministry of Education. These schedules provide .more detail specific to each of the three funds
(Operating, Special Purpose and Capital funds). The balances in these schedules are consistent, when
combined together, with the financial statements. These schedules are comprised of:

Summary of Significant Events

Schedule 2: Operating Fund —
well as the District's operatin
Fund budget, any surplus is car ard to future years.
Schedule 3: Special Purpose Fund — accounts for gra
spending is for specific activities. © As these are,targete
accounted as deferred revenue, not accumulated surplus.
Schedule 4: C Fund = accounts for the District's investment in capital assets, local capital
as well as byl ital, other provincial capital, other capital, land capital and Ministry of
Education restrict ital.

ounts for the District' grants and other oper’ing revenues as
ses. As the District must present a balanced Operating

nd other contributions whereby
ding, any unspent funds are

During the year, the District managed several large capital projects including:

added to twenty six (26) schools;
Preliminary work on Canyon Falls Middle school.

As well, the Ministry of Education announced funding for a new middle school in Lake Country to be
opened in September 2021.

In July 2016, the District began building a new board office on Hollywood Road. In March 2018, staff
moved to the newly opened board office and the old board office on Underhill Road was sold.

4|Page
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INDICATORS OF FINANCIAL HEALTH

The following highlights some of the more significant financial health indicators of the District.

Working Capital Ratio - also called the current ratio, is a liquidity ratio that measures a District's ability
to pay off its current liabilities with current assets. A working capital ratio greater than one is desirable
as it means that the District has the ability to pay current liabilities as they are due. A working capital
ratio of less than one (1) indicates that the District would have to borrow to meet short term
obligations. The working capital ratio is calculated as current assets.divided by current liabilities. The
District's working capital ratio is healthy and well above one (1

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

v

and expenses over a five i Th|s data shows a constant upward trend in both revenues and
expenses Iment changes while expenses are primarily affected by
stafflng mmitm
205,377,579
200,486,578
4 194,314,438 i
181,797,999 '
176,335,458
206,615,994 209,918,425
197,739,919
181,282,732 185,289,836

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

mmmm Total Oper Revenues — s====Total Oper Exps
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Operating Expenses per Student — The majority of the District's spending is dedicated towards salaries

and benefits. The following chart illustrates what the District spends, on average, per FTE student
compared to other comparable size districts and the province. The data indicates an overall increase
in operating expenses as enrolment increases. This also correlates with the level of per student FTE
funding that is availability for distribution from the Ministry of Education.

$12,000
$9,906 $9,937
$10,000 o 59,793 59'?86 $9,044
1)
$8,000 -
$6,000 L
$4,000 -~
$2,000 -
$0 ’
PROVINCIAL RICHMOND VICTORIA CENTRAL ABBOTSFORD
AVERAGE OKANAGAN
e 2017 w2016 s 2015 meem 2014 Linear (2017)

) N S

/ u_compare the District's %a set net book value (cost less
ost when pu sed), the % illustrates how new a

Changes in Capital A
amortization) to the
district's assets are. Arela
The concern wi i ets may not be replaced on a regular basis, which may

6indicates newer assets whereas a lower % indicates older assets.

be an indi i orasignificant cost in the future to replace capital

w, the Di t's 4 year average for buildings only (buildings
tkssets) of 58.2% is slightly less than the provincial average

s illustrated in the graph be
er 80% of the District's t
ver the aver of com

assets.

account
of 58.5% an
is maintaining it ildings.

ble size FTE districts at 57.7%. This indicates the District

58.6%
58.4%
58.2%
58.0%
57.8%
57.6%

57.4%

57.2%
PROVINCIAL CENTRAL OKANAGAN COMPARABLE
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Changes in Surplus Compared to Operating Expenses — one of the key indicators of the financial health

of an organization is the accumulated operating surplus. This indicator takes Accumulated Surplus from
Operations (District's accumulated revenue in excess of expenses over time) and is compared to
expenditures to determine the District's ability to react to emergent situations and the ability to fund
special initiatives.

When compared to the province, comparable size FTE districts and the Ministry recommended ranges

(2.5-5% for internally restricted surplus and .5-1% for unrestricted surplus), the District is maintaining

both an internally and unrestricted surplus within the acceptab

12.00%
10.00%
8.00%
6.00%
4.00%

2.00%

1179
1.00% 7% 0.69% 0.77% 0.69%

0.00% ——=

MOE Provincial Central Richmond Abbotsford Victoria
Recommended  Average Okanagan
High

w=== |nternally Restricted Unrestriced

Overall Financial Health

Overall, the ict has strong financial health when compared to comparable districts and the

province. This is ated throughout this report, including a working capital ratio above one, a high
% in changes in ¢ | assets indicating the District's maintains new assets and the average
unrestricted surpluses remaining within the recommended Ministry range of .5% - 1%. The internally
restricted surpluses average is slightly below the recommended Ministry range of 2.5% - 5%. This

strong financial health can be contributed to sound financial management, planning and governance.
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